MINUTES

EMMET COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION
HARBOR SPRINGS, MICHIGAN

The Emmet County Board of Road Commissioners met in special session at the Conway Office on
October 7, 2025, for the purposes of discussing road issues with township officials from Little Traverse,
Bear Creek, Friendship, and Pleasantview Township.

Commissioners Present:
Frank Zulski, Chairman

Staff Present:

Brent Shank — Engineer/Manager
Lisa Kleeman - Finance Director
Tony Shaler — Shop Foreman

Guests Present:
Ken Golding
Rob Parson
Joe McGuiness

Little Traverse Township Officials:

Supervisor — Bill Dohm
Trustee — Joe Chattaway

Bear Creek Township Officials:
Supervisor — Dennis Keiser
Trustee — Joe Hoffman
Treasurer — Connie Golding

Friendship Township Officials:
Clerk —Janell VanDivner

Pleasantview Township Officials: None

Wade Williams, Vice-Chairman Jim Kargol, Member

Travis Horrocks — Engineer Technician
John Gray — South Road Foreman

Trustee — Ken Garver
Clerk — Kim Porta

Clerk — Emma Radatovich
Deputy Supervisor — Garrett Muir
Trustee — Tom Urman

Trustee - James Fisher

1. Chairman Zulski called the meeting to order at 5:58 p.m. and led the pledge of allegiance.

2. Roll was called.

3. Little Traverse Township officials were welcomed at 5:59 p.m. with introduction of attendees.
a. Road Report — Distributed in August, there were no questions.

b. Review of 2025 Projects:

i Beach Road wedging

c. 2026 Planned Projects —

i.  Seal coat project is planned on primary roads and a list of potential roads was sent
to the townships. Would like to put this out for bid in December in order to



Board of Emmet County Road Commissioners October 7, 2025

obtain the best bid price and contractor schedule. There was much discussion on
various seal coat projects around the county.

ii. Beach Road — Cost share for capping, dependent on new funding.

iii. Catob Road — putting an overlay on this from Hedrick Road to Pleasantview Road.

d. Maintenance Topics:

i Ice Storm cleanup update and plan for continuing to chip debris. The road
commission is taking care of road debris but not residential debris. Cleanup will
continue in the spring if needed.

e. Other Topics:

i.  Turnlane on M119 at Little Traverse Primary Care is needed. There was
discussion on getting politicians involved to get this done with MDOT.
ii. Dohm stated he is very happy with our crew and especially John Gray, he always
responds well to requests.
iii.  Walking trail markers on M119 are needed near the airport.

Little Traverse Township officials left the meeting at 6:16 p.m.

4. Bear Creek Township officials were welcomed at 6:34 p.m.

a.

Road Report — Distributed in August. Urman inquired why the west end of Click Road is
rated a 2. Shank explained how ratings are determined. Urman inquired if a chip seal would
be appropriate to repair this road. Shank responded it would possibly get 2-3 years from
the suggested treatment and the cost would be approximately $48,000 per mile. It will
definitely help the road but not benefit it the way a chip seal on a road rated a 5 would.
Review of 2025 Projects:

i. Haas Road
ii.  Greenwood Road
iii.  George Road
2026 Planned Projects:

i.  Seal coat project is planned on primary roads and a list of potential roads was sent

to the townships. Keiser stated they planned to go with the list Shank sent.
Maintenance Topics:

i. Ice Storm cleanup update and plan for continuing to chip debris. The road
commission is taking care of road debris but not residential debris. Cleanup will
continue in the spring if needed.

ii.  Shanley Road could use a grading. Shank responded a blade truck was through
recently and Gray stated a grader has been through this year also.

iii. Urman stated McDougal Road is getting pocketed again, especially to the north.
Other Topics:

i.  Keiser inquired on the process for getting streetlights at major intersections and
Shank responded that MDOT needs to be contacted.

ii. Permanent flashing speed lights are needed on some of their roads and Keiser
inquired if the road commission would permit those and Shank responded yes,
they can be installed on crash worthy posts.

Page 2 of 4



Board of Emmet County Road Commissioners October 7, 2025

iii. New funding was discussed.

iv. Joe Hoffman discussed some brush/debris that was left on Maplewood Road after
we finished working there this weekend. He also stated we did a good job
handling the storm. Urman also stated the crew did an awesome job during the
storm.

V. Urman discussed the condition of River Road and inquired if there are any
projects planned for this area, especially from Click Road to the county line.

vi.  Click Road bridge repair plan was reviewed.

vii.  Hoffman inquired on tribal money for 2026 and Shank stated these funds will be
used on Brutus Road. He is also looking at safety grant money available through
BIA.

Bear Creek Township officials left the meeting at 6:54 p.m.

5. Friendship Township officials were welcomed at 7:00 p.m.

a.

Road Report — Distributed in August. VanDivner inquired about ratings on gravel roads and
Shank explained they are rated using a formula based on width, drainage, and gravel depth.
VanDivner stated she still has a problem with the rating of 3 on Hurd Road and Shank
explained this

Review of 2025 Projects:

i. Middle Village Road

ii.  Tree project. County Line Road has two stumps that will be required to be dug
out.

2026 Planned Projects:

i.  Seal coat project is planned on primary roads and a list of potential roads was sent
to the townships. Would like to put this out for bid in December in order to
obtain the best bid price and contractor schedule.

ii.  Gravel roads in the township need some work. Shank specifically discussed
Middle Village Road; this road needs to be reconstructed.

iii.  North end of Terpening Road could use 6” of gravel added as this road has good
drainage.

iv.  VanDivner inquired about a chip seal on Lightfoot Road and Wressel Road and
Shank responded yes, it would extend the life of the pavement.

d. Maintenance Topics:

i Ice Storm cleanup update and plan for continuing to chip debris. The road
commission is taking care of road debris but not residential debris. Cleanup will
continue in the spring if needed.

ii. Fisher inquired if the seasonal roads are being graded.

e. Other Topics:

i.  VanDivner inquired about the new funding.

ii.  Middle Village Drive on the west side is Readmond Townships responsibility. Have
they indicated they plan to repair this? Shank responded they are focused on
Gully Road.

Page 3 of 4



Board of Emmet County Road Commissioners October 7, 2025

iii.  VanDivner inquired about asphalt patching to occur yet this fall.

iv.  VanDivner stated Stutsmanville Road from Terpening to Townline Road still needs
something done, even a seal coat would help this. She would like a response back
on this project so it doesn’t wait another year to be discussed. Shank will look at
this for the chip seal program.

v.  Parsons discussed Middle Village Road is being pounded by the loggers again. Is
there any money we can get from the State for these roads. Shank discussed
Forest Funds of $63,000 per year and the permit requirements for loggers do not
exist anymore. There was much discussion on this issue and the lack of
involvement at the State level in solving this.

vi.  Williams suggested having the loggers clear the right-of-way if there are logging
jobs in the area.

Friendship Township officials left the meeting at 7:30 p.m.

6. Pleasantview Township officials did not arrive.
7. Public Comment: None

8. Chairman Zulski adjourned the meeting at 7:43 p.m.

Bl s Jo—17-35

Lisa Kleeman — Finance Director/Clerk of the Board Date

Page 4 of 4



